
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

ORDINARY MEETING OF THE 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

In The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton on 

Wednesday, 4 December 2019 at 7.15 pm

Public Document Pack



Councillors are hereby summoned to an ORDINARY MEETING OF THE HIGH PEAK 
BOROUGH COUNCIL at The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton at 7.15 pm on Wednesday, 4 
December 2019.

Tuesday, 26 November 2019

Page No.

1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matter before the Council 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting 

a) Special Meeting - 15 October 2019 3 - 4
b) Ordinary Meeting - 15 October 2019 5 - 10

4. Mayor's announcements 

5. Questions of which notice has been given 

6. To approve the recommendations from the Audit and Regulatory Committee 11 - 12

a) Treasury Management - Mid Year Update Report 13 - 26
b) Appointment of Mayor 2020/21 27 - 30

7. To approve the recommendations from the Standards Committee 31 - 32

a) Standards Committee Annual Report 33 - 40

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

High Peak Borough Council



High Peak Borough Council

MINUTES OF AN SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Meeting: Tuesday, 15 October 2019 at 7.15 pm in The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton

Present: Councillor E Kelly (Chair)

Councillors R Abbotts, T Ashton, R Atkins, R Baker, A Barrow, E Burton, 
J Collins, O Cross, L Dowson, C Farrell, S Flower, S Gardner, D Greenhalgh, 
L Grooby, J Haken, M Hall, I Huddlestone, T Kemp, D Kerr, E Lawson, 
D Lomax, E Longden, A McKeown, R McKeown, G Oakley, J Perkins, 
R Quinn, P Roberts, K Savage, E Siddall, K Sizeland, F Sloman, M Stone, 
K Thomson, S Thomson, E Thrane, J Todd, G Wharmby, J Wharmby and 
S Young

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Hardy and 
J Douglas

20/14 FORMER BOROUGH COUNCILLOR ROY BICKERTON AND COUNTY 
COUNCILLOR ALISON FOX
(Agenda Item )

The Council observed a minute’s silence in memory of former Borough 
Councillor Roy Bickerton and County Councillor Alison Fox who had 
recently passed away.

20/15 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTER BEFORE 
THE COUNCIL
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations made.

20/16 ADMISSION OF HONORARY FREEMAN OF THE BOROUGH
(Agenda Item 3)

It was moved by Councillor A. McKeown and seconded by Councillor 
Ashton:

That under the power conferred by Section 249 (5) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, this Council admits as Honorary Freeman of the Borough, Mr 
John Pritchard of Elnor Lane, Whaley Bridge being a person of distinction 
who has rendered eminent service to the Borough.

When put to the meeting it was RESOLVED accordingly

The meeting concluded at 7.30 pm

MAYOR
Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



This page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Borough Council

MINUTES OF AN ORDINARY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Meeting: Tuesday, 15 October 2019 at 7.15 pm in The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton

Present: Councillor E Kelly (Chair)

Councillors R Abbotts, T Ashton, R Atkins, R Baker, A Barrow, E Burton, 
J Collins, O Cross, L Dowson, C Farrell, S Flower, S Gardner, D Greenhalgh, 
L Grooby, J Haken, M Hall, I Huddlestone, T Kemp, D Kerr, E Lawson, 
D Lomax, E Longden, A McKeown, R McKeown, G Oakley, J Perkins, 
R Quinn, P Roberts, K Savage, E Siddall, K Sizeland, F Sloman, M Stone, 
K Thomson, S Thomson, E Thrane, J Todd, G Wharmby, J Wharmby and 
S Young

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Hardy and 
J Douglas

20/17 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTER BEFORE 
THE COUNCIL
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations made.

20/18 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

It was moved by A. McKeown and seconded by Councillor Greenhalgh that 
the minutes of the Annual meeting held on 15 May 2019 be approved as a 
correct record.

The motion was carried and the Mayor was authorised to sign the minutes.

20/19 MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
(Agenda Item 4)

The Mayor announced that a Christmas collection for his charities would 
take place at the next Council meeting in lieu of sending Christmas cards 
and that his Ball would take place on 14 March 2020.

20/20 NOTICE OF MOTION - CLIMATE EMERGENCY
(Agenda Item 11)

It was moved by Councillor Collins and seconded by Councillor Todd that:

Climate Change is an existential threat.  Humans have already caused 
irreversible climate change, the impacts of which are being felt around the 
world.  Global temperatures have increased by 1⁰C  from pre-industrial Page 5

Agenda Item 3b



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Tuesday, 15 October 2019

levels.  Atmospheric CO2 levels are above the 400 parts per million (ppm).  
This far exceeds the 350 ppm deemed to be safe for humanity.  Extreme 
weather events have already caused damage and destruction in this 
country. Locally the effects of climate change are seen in falling water levels 
and erratic weather conditions affecting farming and infrastructure.  Natural 
habitats, wildlife and biodiversity are in peril not only from Climate Change 
but also from human intervention, which in turn is increasing the effects of 
the climate and biodiversity crises.

Scientists warn that we have little over a decade to implement urgent action 
to reduce and limit CO2 emissions before we reach a global tipping point. 
Action is required at international, national and local level to achieve the 
carbon reduction levels needed.  Councils around the world and in UK are 
responding by declaring a Climate Emergency and committing the 
resources to address this emergency.

This Council pledges to:

1. Declare a Climate Emergency
2. Make High Peak Borough Council carbon neutral in its internal 

operations and the services it delivers by 2030, and work with partners to 
achieve this target across High Peak

3. Call on the UK Government to provide the powers and resources to 
make the 2030 target possible.

4. Work with partners across the county and region to deliver this new goal 
through all relevant strategies

5. Work to mitigate the biodiversity crisis in its actions across the Borough
6. To address this emergency, establish a cross-party working group to 

assist in investigation, prioritisation, drafting and delivery of a plan 
including targets for CO2 reduction, working with officer support and 
drawing on wider expertise. 

7. To include a cross section of local people in drawing up this plan.  
8. To report back to Council by end of March 2020 with this plan
9. Ensure that all Council committees and scrutiny panels consider the 

impact on climate change and the natural environment when taking 
decisions and reviewing policies. 

10.Review progress against the target and report back every six months. 

An amendment was moved by Councillor Ashton and seconded by 
Councillor Kemp that this Council pledges to:

1. Declare a Climate Emergency
2. Aspire to make High Peak Borough Council carbon neutral in its internal 

operations and the services it delivers by 2030, and work with partners to 
achieve this target across High Peak

3. Call on the UK Government to provide the powers and resources to make 
the 2030 target possible.

4. Work with partners across the county and region to deliver this new goal 
through all relevant strategies

5. Work to mitigate the biodiversity crisis in its actions across the Borough.

The Council therefore resolves to: 
Page 6



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Tuesday, 15 October 2019

6. Respond to the Climate Change Emergency by working in accordance 
with the Corporate Plan 2019-23 to put in place practical policies and 
actions within the control of HPBC including:

 
 The establishment of a cross-party sub-committee to assist in 

investigation, prioritisation, drafting and delivery of a strategy, action 
plan and timetable including targets for CO2 reduction, working with 
officer support and drawing on wider expertise.

 The inclusion of local residents and businesses chosen in 
accordance with ‘citizens’ assembly’ principles in drawing up this 
strategy and plan.

 Ensuring that all Council committees and scrutiny panels consider the 
impact on climate change and the natural environment when taking 
decisions and reviewing policies.

 Presenting the proposed strategy, timetable, action plan and 
monitoring arrangements to Full Council for approval by March 2020.

Following consideration by the Council, with the agreement of Councillor 
Ashton, the amendment was withdrawn.

A further amendment to revise the original motion was moved by Councillor 
A. McKeown and seconded by Councillor Ashton as follows:

 The establishment of a cross-party working group to assist in 
investigation, prioritisation, drafting and delivery of a strategy, action 
plan and timetable including targets for CO2 reduction, working with 
officer support and drawing on wider expertise.

 The inclusion of local residents and businesses chosen in accordance 
with ‘citizens’ assembly’ principles in drawing up this strategy and plan.

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.

20/21 TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE EXECUTIVE
(Agenda Item 6)

20/21a CORPORATE PLAN 2019-23
(Agenda Item 6a)

It was moved by Councillor A. McKeown and seconded by Councillor 
Greenhalgh that the Council’s vision, aims, objectives, influencing objectives 
and priorities be approved.

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.

Page 7



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Tuesday, 15 October 2019

20/22 TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE AUDIT AND 
REGULATORY COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 7)

20/22a ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19
(Agenda Item 7a)

It was moved by Councillor Thrane and seconded by Councillor Cross that 
the Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19 be approved.

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.

20/23 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE
(Agenda Item 7b)

It was moved by Councillor Thrane and seconded by Councillor Cross that 
the Treasury Management position as at 30th June 2019 be noted.

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.

20/24 TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 8)

20/24a COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE - ETHICAL STANDARDS 
REVIEW
(Agenda Item 8a)

It was moved by Councillor Quinn and seconded by Councillor Roberts that 
the revised Code of Conduct as attached at Appendix 3 to the report be 
approved.

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.

20/25 REVIEW OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS
(Agenda Item 9)

It was moved by Councillor A. McKeown and seconded by Councillor 
Greenhalgh that:

1. A politically balanced sub-committee (comprising 7 councillors for which 
substitutes would be permitted), chaired by the Leader of the Council, be 
appointed  to conduct a review of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
function performed by its select committees.

2. Any revised arrangements be proposed to Council and implemented 
following Annual Council on 14 May 2020.

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.
Page 8



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Tuesday, 15 October 2019

20/26 DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY CHIEF 
EXECUTIVES AND STATUTORY OFFICERS
(Agenda Item 10)

It was moved by Councillor Barrow and seconded by Councillor Ashton that:

1. The model Disciplinary Procedure and Guidance for the Chief Executive 
in accordance with the JNC Conditions of Service Handbook for Chief 
Executives be adopted.

2. The same Disciplinary Procedure and Guidance for other officers who 
hold a statutory role (Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer) as 
recommended by the JNC for Chief Executives be adopted.

3. An Investigating and Disciplinary Committee (IDC) be established in 
accordance with the JNC for Chief Executives Conditions of Service 
Handbook. The IDC should consist of an equal number of members from 
both High Peak Borough Council (HPBC) and Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council (SMDC), as a result of the Chief Executive and other 
statutory officers being jointly employed by the two councils.

4. An elected member (the Chair of the IDC) with the designated power to 
suspend the Chief Executive and other statutory officers in an 
emergency be appointed.

5. The Council’s constitution be updated to comply with the JNC Conditions 
of Service Handbook for Chief Executives

When put to the vote, it was RESOLVED accordingly.

The meeting concluded at 8.39 pm

MAYOR

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Council 

4 December 2019

To approve the following recommendations of the Audit and Regulatory Committee:

a) Treasury Management - Mid Year Update Report

Recommended:

That the Treasury Management position as at 30th September 2019 be 
noted.

b) Appointment of Mayor 2020/21

Recommended:

That the Council confirm that the Conservative Group be invited to 
make a nomination for the appointment of Mayor of the Borough and 
Chairman of the Council for the municipal year 2020/21.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

TITLE: Recommendations from the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee – 23 October 2019

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo, Executive Director (People) & 
Monitoring Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: As detailed in the attached report(s)

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

23 October 2019

TITLE: Treasury Management - Mid Year Update 
Report

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Barrow- Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Deputy Director and Head 
of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Mid-Year Update Report 30th September 
2019

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. To allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s treasury management performance 
in 2019/20 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management and generally 
accepted good practice

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Committee note the current Treasury Management position as at 30th 
September 2019.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the Council in March 2010. 
This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which is to produce at 
least one mid-year operational report.

3.2. This report comprises the following:

 The latest interest rate forecast;
 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2019/20;

Page 13

Agenda Item 6a



 The current investment portfolio;
 Capital programme update, the borrowing portfolio with projected 

borrowing costs for 2019/20 and debt rescheduling options; and
 Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the Treasury 

Management Strategy 2019/20.

3.3. The main headlines include:

 The Bank of England base rate remains unchanged at 0.75% and the 
forecast increase has been moved back to December 2020.

 HM Treasury has announced that with immediate effect the PWLB new 
loan rates would be increased by 1%.

 A shortfall of £47,000 is expected against the investment income budget of 
£225,260 due to the delayed increase in interest rates and continuing 
internal borrowing. This will be partially offset by interest income of £14,360 
from the loan to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust which was not 
included in the original budget.

 A saving of £88,570 overall is forecast on the borrowing costs budget, split 
£53,140 to the general fund and £35,430 to the HRA, due to internal 
borrowing.

 The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the 
period from 1st July to 30th September was 0.82%. This compares 
favorably to short-term industry benchmarks.

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £21 million spread across six 
separate institutions as at 30th September 2019.

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 30th September was £66.8 million at 
an average annual borrowing rate of 3.92%.  

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective treasury management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1. This report sets out the treasury management position for High Peak Borough 
Council for 2019/20 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is a statement 
of fact and there are no options.

Page 14



ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

‘Treasury Management – Governance & 
Scrutiny Arrangements’ (Audit & 
Regulatory Committee September 2009)

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2019/20’ (Audit & Regulatory 
Committee, February 2019)

Finance & Procurement
Town Hall, Buxton

Claire Hazeldene
Deputy Director & Head of Finance
claire.hazeldene@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Emily.Bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Update 
30th September 2019

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

3. Investment Income

4. Investment Portfolio

5. Capital Programme & Borrowing Position

6. Prudential Indicators

High Peak Borough Council
Working for our community

Page 17



1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “the management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks”.

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management which recommends that Members should be briefed on 
Treasury Management activities at least twice a year.

1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 
scrutinising the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval 
of the annual treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational 
treasury management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee are reported to full Council.

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2019/20 was 
approved by Council on 13th February 2019. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 30th September 2019 and projects 
forward for the remainder of the financial year.

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the 
latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:

% Dec-
19

Mar-
20

Jun-
20

Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Jun-
21

Sep-
21

Dec-
21

Mar-
22

Bank Rate 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.25
5yr PWLB 

rate 2.30 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10

10r PWLB 
rate 2.60 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.40

25yr PWLB 
rate 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.60 3.70 3.70 3.80 3.90 4.00 4.00

50yr PWLB 
rate 3.20 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.60 3.60 3.70 3.80 3.90 3.90

2.2. Link has revised the interest rate forecast to take account of the continuing 
uncertainties around the exit of the EU and political situations both domestic 
and international. The forecast increase for the Bank of England base rate 
to 1.00% has been moved back to the quarter ending December 2020 with 
no further increase beyond this until March 2022. Link continues to 
acknowledge that unfolding events could prompt movements in rates in 
either direction at any time. 

Page 18



2.3. HM Treasury made an announcement on 9th October that with immediate 
effect the PWLB new loan rates would be increased by 1% - this has been 
reflected in the interest rate forecast table at paragraph 2.1. 

2.4. Annex A to this report contains the full announcement from HM Treasury 
regarding this change to new loans from the PWLB.

3. Investment Income 

3.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 30th September 2019 totalled 
£73,740. The Council has budgeted to receive £225,260 in investment 
income in 2019/20. The budget was set with an expectation of higher 
interest rates than the current environment: 1.00% for the first three 
quarters of the year and a further potential rate rise to 1.25% at the end of 
the year. The Bank of England base rate remains at 0.75% at the end of the 
first quarter and is now not expected to rise until 2020/21. In addition, the 
Council continues to internally borrow some of the underlying borrowing 
requirement from previous capital expenditure resulting in a smaller 
investment portfolio. Therefore a shortfall of £47,000 is currently forecast on 
the investment income budget; this will be monitored throughout the year.

3.2. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in 
the table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the 
recognised industry benchmark rates:

Comparator Average 
Rate Q1

Average 
Rate Q2

HPBC Average 0.82% 0.82%
HPBC long-term fixed (>364 days) 1.25% 1.21%
HPBC short-term fixed (<364 days) 0.97% 0.98%
HPBC instant access 0.67% 0.64%
Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 day rate 0.57% 0.56%
*LIBID 3 month rate 0.68% 0.64%
*LIBID 6 month rate 0.78% 0.69%
*LIBID 12 month rate 0.91% 0.75%
Base Rate at the end of the period 0.75% 0.75%

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

3.3. The table below highlights the level of investment activity and the rates 
obtained in the period from 1st July to 30th September 2019.  Investments 
are made in line with Link’s creditworthiness guidance and the duration 
limits applied to each colour banding.
Institution Country of 

Domicile Amount Length Rate

Lloyds Bank (RFB) UK £1,000,000 1 year 1.10%
Instant Access Cash
(Instant Access Accounts & 
Money Market Funds)

UK £2,451,187
(daily average) 0.64%

Page 19



3.4. The rates achieved by the Council vary by institution, by duration of 
investment and by the timing of when the investment was made. The 
Council’s lending criteria restricts the number of financial institutions that 
are eligible to be on the lending list, and the amount that can be invested 
with eligible counterparties (and counterparty groups) at any one time. 

3.5. The majority of the investment portfolio is held on a short-term basis (<1 
year). The Council uses same day access business accounts, money 
market funds, fixed term deposits and certificates of deposits (via the use of 
custodian King & Shaxson) which offer competitive rates and access to 
banks that would not necessarily deal direct with the Authority for the sums 
invested.

4. Investment Portfolio

4.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 30th September 2019 totalled £20,985,000:

Financial Institution
Country 

of 
Domicile

Amount
Maximum 

recommended lending 
duration

Average 
interest 

rate at end 
of period

Average 
Maturity

Money Market Funds UK £6,900,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.75% Instant access
Santander UK UK £4,500,000 RED (6 months) 1.00% 95 day notice
Lloyds Bank (RFB) UK £3,150,000 ORANGE (12 months) 1.05% 300 days
NatWest Bank (RFB) UK £3,135,000 BLUE (12 months) 0.30% Instant access
Goldman Sachs UK £2,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.95% 183 days
Bank of Scotland UK £1,300,000 ORANGE (12 months) 0.65% Instant access

TOTAL £20,985,00
0

4.2. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by 
colour banding in the table below:

Colour Banding
Maximum 

Duration of 
Investment

UK 
Banks

International 
Banks

PURPLE Up to 2 years £6.0m £4.5m
ORANGE Up to 12 months £5.4m £3.6m

RED Up to 6 months £4.5m £3.0m
GREEN Up to 100 days £3.9m £2.4m

BLUE (Part & fully nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 year £6.0m n/a

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 year £9.0m n/a

Money Market Funds Up to 1 year £5.4m n/a
Up to 1 year n/a n/aWHITE (Lending to the 

Government / Local Authorities) Over 1 Year £4.0m n/a

Page 20



4.3. Group limits are also applied:

Category
Portfolio 

(% of 
highest 

balance*)

Individual 
Principal 

Limit

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50%

Group 
Principal 

Limit

BLUE 20% £6.0m 30% £9.0m
PURPLE 20% £6.0m 30% £9.0m
ORANGE 18% £5.4m 27% £8.1m

RED 15% £4.5m 23% £6.9m
GREEN 13% £3.9m 20% £6.0m
Money 
Market 
Funds

18% £5.4m 23% £6.9m

 
4.4. The average level of funds available for investment up to 30th September 

2019 was £17.9million. Investments are generally made up of short-term 
cash and core cash. Short-term cash is dependent on the timing of major 
payments e.g. precept payments, salaries and creditor payments, and 
major receipts e.g. receipt of grants and Council Tax direct debits.  Core 
cash is dependent on capital programme commitments. 

Crescent Development

4.5. The Council agreed to provide a loan to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust 
as part of the Crescent development, per the Individual Executive Decision 
report dated 24th October 2018 (Confidential Exempt Information by virtue 
of paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972); and approved at full Council on 12th December 2018.

4.6. The loan has now been fully drawn to the value of £250,000: £70,000 on 
28th February 2019; £70,000 on 25th March 2019; £60,000 on 25th April 
2019; and £50,000 on 25th May 2019. Interest is charged on the loan at 6% 
which amounts to £14,360 during 2019/20. This was not anticipated in the 

Page 21



budget, therefore will partially offset the £47,000 shortfall on investment 
income forecast above.

Page 22



5. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position

Capital Programme Update

5.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and 
funding:

TMSS Estimate 
2019/20

Current Estimate 
(including 18/19 
approved carry 

forwards)*
Total Capital Expenditure £10,838,000 £9,754,000
    General Fund £6,744,000 £6,130,000
    HRA £4,094,000 £3,624,000
Funded by:
    Capital Receipts £1,288,000 £1,426,000
    External Funding £765,000 £921,000
    Capital Reserves £2,175,000 £2,599,000
    HRA Contribution £1,934,000 £1,464,000
2019/20 Net Financing Requirement £4,676,000 £3,344,000
Capital Financing Requirement
  Opening CFR £79,786,000 £79,897,000
    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £4,676,000 £3,344,000
    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£1,782,000) (£1,782,000)
  Closing CFR £82,680,000 £81,459,000
    General Fund £28,821,000 £28,060,000
    Housing £53,859,000 £53,399,000

* Estimate pending Q2 forecast outturn and November 2019 MTFP

5.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2019/20 expenditure is now estimated 
at £3,344,000: the change relates to reprofiled capital schemes.

5.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to 
ensure that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR 
represents the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been 
paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure 
of the Council's underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure 
and is derived by aggregating specified items for the Council's balance 
sheet. The closing CFR is in line with the Capital Financing Requirement 
set in the Treasury Strategy Statement. On the basis of the latest forecasts, 
the Council's capital investment plans remain affordable.

Borrowing Position

5.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of 
the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow.  Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as 
part of the prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement.

Page 23



5.5. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 30th September 2019 is 
£66,825,404, as detailed in the table below:

Lender External 
Borrowing

Average 
Interest Rate Maturity period

Public Works Loan Board £54,025,404 3.76% between 2 and 43 years

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 3 and 48 years

Total £66,825,404 3.92%

5.6. The ‘operational boundary’ (£88,182,000) and ‘authorised limit’ 
(£90,682,000) indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing 
available to the Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of 
borrowing is within prudential limits.

5.7. The Council adopts a ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing whereby 
investments and borrowing are managed centrally with the proportional 
income and expenditure then split between the general fund and HRA. The 
Council has budgeted for interest charges and other financing costs of 
£1,794,630 to the general fund and £1,783,310 to the HRA in 2019/20.

5.8. The budget for borrowing costs was based on the existing external debt and 
new external debt from the 2018/19 and 2019/20 general fund borrowing 
requirements. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing thus far during the 
current year and the Council continues to maintain a level of internal 
borrowing which is reducing the level of forecast borrowing costs for the 
year by £88,570: split £53,140 to the general fund and £35,430 to the HRA. 

5.9. The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally 
borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow, 
considering the movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any 
borrowings taken.

5.10. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 
maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates 
are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Page 24



Less than 
1 year*

1 - 2 
years

2 - 5 
years

6 - 10 
years

11- 20 
years

21 - 30 
years

31 - 40 
years

41 - 50 
years

Greater 
than 50 
years

-

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

Debt Maturity Profile

*In accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBO’s is deemed to be the next call date. Loans 
of £4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

5.11. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the 
risk.  The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for 
debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.

5.12. No rescheduling has taken place during 2019/20 to date.  The Council will 
work with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking 
account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early 
redemption compared to the potential interest savings.  

6. Prudential Indicators

6.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential 
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2019/20 and 
complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

Page 25



Annex A

Page 26



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council

4 December 2019

TITLE: Appointment of Mayor 2020/21

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Anthony McKeown - Council 
Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Not Applicable

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To consider the selection of the Mayor for the municipal year 2020/21.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Council confirm that the Conservative Group be invited to make a 
nomination for the appointment of Mayor of the Borough and Chairman of the 
Council for the municipal year 2020/21.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Mayor is ordinarily selected according to a points system as referred to in 
Article 5 of the Constitution and detailed in the Protocol for the Nomination of 
Mayor.  Taking into account the current points position the Labour Group have 
the most points as at 1 October 2019.

3.2 The selection of Mayor was initially considered by the Audit and Regulatory 
Committee on 23 October 2019.  It was confirmed at the meeting that the 
Labour Group, despite having the highest number of points, would not 
exercise the selection of Mayor from within its membership for 2020/21.  The 
Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor states that where this is the case the 
option will pass to the group with the next highest number of points.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Not applicable.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6b



5. Alternative Options

5.1 Nomination of the Mayor is determined in accordance with the Protocol for the 
Nomination of Mayor which forms part of the Council’s Constitution.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Article 5 of the Constitution and Protocol for the 
Nomination of Mayor

Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and Member 
Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 The Mayor is ordinarily selected according to a points system as referred to in 
Article 5 of the Constitution and detailed in the Protocol for the Nomination of 
Mayor.

6.2 The basic principle is the political group with most points at 1 October each 
year, has the opportunity to nominate the Mayor for the next municipal year.

6.3 The system started with the actual number of members in each political group. 
Since 1980, annual adjustments have been made according to changes in 
each group’s strength. The points allocated to the political groups have been 
adjusted following the elections held in May this year.

6.4 Whenever a group nominate a Mayor, ten points are deducted from their 
points total and this shows up the following October. 

6.5 The points system for the selection of the Mayor currently stands as follows:

Group Points as 
at 1.10.18

Mayor for 
2019/20

Points as 
at 1.10.19

Conservative 15-10=
5 5+16=21

Labour 14 X 14-
10+22=26

Liberal Democrat 11 11+3=14
Green 2

6.6 In respect of the Deputy Mayor, the points system does not apply.

6.7 In some years, the Deputy Mayor has been chosen with a view to progressing 
to Mayor the following year, but this is not always the case.

Page 28

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1295/The-Constitution
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1295/The-Constitution


6.8 The selection of Mayor was initially considered by the Audit and Regulatory 
Committee on 23 October 2019.  It was confirmed at the meeting that the 
Labour Group, despite having the highest number of points, would not 
exercise the selection of Mayor from within its own membership for 2020/21.  
The Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor states that where this is the case the 
option will pass to the group with the next highest number of points.

6.9 The Labour Group deferred the nomination on this occasion, because it is the 
view of the current administration that where practical or possible the Deputy 
Mayor should go on to serve as Mayor. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 

4 December 2019

To approve the following recommendation of the Standards Committee:

a) Standards Committee Annual Report

RECOMMENDED:

That the report be noted.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

TITLE: Recommendations from the Standards 
Committee – 13 November 2019

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo, Executive Director (People) & 
Monitoring Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: As detailed in the attached report

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Standards Committee 

13 November 2019

TITLE: Standards Committee Annual Report

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendix A – Role of the Committee

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To review the work of the Standards Committee during 2018/2019.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report provides an overview of the issues considered by the Standards 
Committee during 2018/19.  This included the following matters:

 Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 
Conduct

 The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman
 Review of Exemptions from Paying Charges to the Information 

Commissioner's Office
 Annual Review of Councillor Development
 Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review

Page 33

Agenda Item 7a



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 High standards of conduct are integral to the Council achieving its corporate 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Standards Committee Reports
Committee on Standards in Public Life – 7 Principles of 
Public Life

Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and Member 
Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution defines the role of the Standards 
Committee and is shown in full in Appendix A to this report.  In summary this 
includes:

 Promoting high standards of conduct amongst councillors and making 
sure they are properly trained

 Granting dispensations to Borough councillors
 Ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place for dealing with 

allegations into breaches of the Code of Conduct
 Hearing representations from councillors who may become disqualified 

for not attending meetings
 Advising the Council on Members’ allowances

6.2 The current membership of the committee is provided below. The Council’s 
Independent Persons continue to be invited to attend and participate at 
Committee meetings.  

Borough Councillors Cllr Rachel Quinn (Chair)
Cllr Peter Roberts (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Rachel Abbotts
Cllr Tony Ashton
Cllr Stewart Gardner
Cllr Edith Longdon

Co-opted Town/Parish 
representatives (non-voting)

Vacant positions x 2

Independent Persons Mr Peter Matthews
Mr Philip Carnall (substitute)
Mr Peter Grant (substitute)

Page 34

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=148
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLO4xn0gFY8rx2an6GM112Q
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLO4xn0gFY8rx2an6GM112Q


Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 
Conduct

6.3 The Committee continued to receive regular complaint monitoring reports 
regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.  These reports updated 
members on the number and nature of complaints dealt with by the Monitoring 
Officer and explained:

 If these related to borough or town/parish councillors
 If any further action should be taken
 If further investigations were considered to be appropriate

6.4 This information is then used to identify trends and consider themes for which 
training seminars may be planned.  The table below summarises the 
complaints received for the previous years and compares these with the 
Authority’s Strategic Alliance partner, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
(SMDC).

No. of ComplaintsYear
High 
Peak 

Parish 
Cllr

High 
Peak 

Borough 
Cllr

High 
Peak 
Total

Staffordshire 
Moorlands

Parish
Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands

District
Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Total

2013/14 10 1 11 3 1 4
2014/15 2 1 3 5 1 6
2015/16 4 0 4 3 12 15
2016/17 4 2 6 9 16 25
2017/18 1 3 4 5 8 13
2018/19 2 1 3 2 9 11

The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman 

6.5 The Annual Letter of the Local Government Ombudsman was considered by 
the Committee at its meeting in November 2018.  The table below provides a 
summary of the number of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman set 
against the total number of complaints received by the Authority.  For 
comparison purposes figures for previous years are also provided together 
with details for SMDC.

No. of Ombudsman Complaints
HPBC SMDC

Year

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

2012/13 10 404 14 439
2013/14 20* 372 12 280
2014/15 12 413 10 284

Page 35



Year No. of Ombudsman Complaints
HPBC SMDC

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

2015/16 11 368 13 258
2016/17 8* 448 10 245
2017/18 15 308 12 193

* This includes one complaint from the Housing Ombudsman Service.  

6.6 The relatively small number of complaints that reach the Ombudsman 
compared to the total number of complaints received by the Authority 
illustrates the strength of the Council in ensuring complaints are dealt with 
promptly and appropriately.

Review of Exemptions from Paying Charges to the Information Commissioner's 
Office

6.7 The Data Protection (Charges and Information) Regulations 2018 required 
data controllers who are processing personal information to pay a charge to 
the ICO, unless they are exempt. A number of exemptions are available for 
individuals and organisations from paying charges to the Information 
Commissioner. The Government considered that there was merit in reviewing 
the exemptions to ensure that they were still appropriate to the current time, 
and fit for the digital age.  

6.8 Historically, a notification fee had been paid by the Borough Council and 
political parties to the ICO in their capacity as a data controller.  In February 
2018 the Council agreed to register all Councillors with the ICO, and meet the 
registration costs (£35 each).

6.9 The consultation document sought views on a number of proposed 
exemptions.  This included a possible exemption for elected representatives 
(separate to their elected assembly or political party) given that they are 
classed as data controllers in their own right particularly where they engage 
with and undertake casework on behalf of their constituents. 

6.10 Government had previously committed to considering the appropriateness of 
elected representatives being required to pay a charge in respect of their 
processing of personal data and was minded that this activity deriving from 
their public office and public function should not be liable to a charge. The 
Government also wished to avoid barriers to democratic engagement, 
mirroring the approach that the Government had taken during the passage of 
the Data Protection Act through Parliament. 

6.11 Following the consultation exercise the Data Protection (Charges and 
Information) (Amendment) Regulations 2019 were issued (effective from 1 
April 2019) and exempted the processing of personal data by members of the 
House of Lords, elected representatives and prospective representatives.

Page 36



Annual Review of Councillor Development

6.12 The Councillor Development Programme was focused on consolidating 
members’ requirements following the completion of the Induction Programme 
implemented after the May 2015 local elections.  The programme also aimed 
to address any changes in legislation and the Council’s priorities.

6.13 Generally, all Members are invited to attend all events, with some seminars, 
particularly around regulatory matters, such as Development Control and 
Licensing, being essential for members of those committees to attend in order 
to fulfil requirements as set out in the Council’s Constitution.

6.14 The Development Programme included the following seminars / activities:

Seminar Date No. of attendees
Access issues in High Peak, including 
Designing for Diversity and the essential 
principles for achieving an inclusive 
environment

10.10.17 8

Emergency Planning 08.11.17 9
Licensing 19.1.18

2.2.18
15.3.18

2
3
5

Risk Management 27.3.18 6
Code of Conduct Refresher (includes 
parishes councillors and Independent 
persons)

24.4.18 18

General Data Protection Regulations 14.5.18 12
Development Control 23.10.18 13

Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review

6.15 The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) considers that robust 
standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain 
high standards of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government. 

6.16 In 2018, the CSPL undertook a review of local government ethical standards. 
The Council responded to the consultation exercise which informed the report. 
The Committee considered the report’s findings which included areas such as:

 The use of Codes of Conduct
 Allegations of bullying
 The use of Social Media
 Sanctions available
 The role of the Independent Person, Monitoring Officer, Local 

Government Ombudsman and Parish Clerks
 Arrangements for disclosure of interests
 The intimidation of councillors

6.17 The Committee received a further report on these findings in July 2019.

Page 37



6.18 To mark the 25th anniversary of the establishment of the CSPL in October 
2019 it has published a series of short films about the 7 Nolan Principles of 
Public Life and what they mean in practice.  The films can be viewed here.

Page 38

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLO4xn0gFY8rx2an6GM112Q


APPENDIX A

ARTICLE 9

THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

9.1 Role 

(a) The Council will establish a Standards Committee to carry out the 
functions set out more fully in Part 3 of the Constitution. These include, 
promoting high standards of conduct amongst councillors and making 
sure they are properly trained; granting dispensations; ensuring that 
appropriate arrangements are in place for dealing with allegations into 
breaches of the Code of Conduct; hearing representations from 
councillors who may become disqualified for not attending meetings; 
advising the Council on Members’ allowances. 

9.2 Composition

(a) Membership

The Standards Committee will be composed of:

 six members of the Council appointed proportionally

 up to two Town or Parish Council members who may be co-opted 
on to the Committee as non-voting members

(b) Independent Person

The Council’s Independent Person (and their substitutes) will be invited 
to attend meetings of the Standards Committee and will be entitled an 
allowance and to the same subsistence and travelling allowances as 
elected members.

(c) Parish/Town Councillors

Where a complaint refers to a Parish/Town Councillor, hereafter known 
as a Parish Councillor, a non-voting Parish member of the Standards 
Committee may also attend any Hearing Panel and will be entitled to an 
allowance and the same subsistence and travelling allowances as 
elected members.

9.3 Other functions

(a) The Hearings Panel (a Sub-Committee of the Council’s Standards 
Committee) shall comprise a maximum of five councillors of the 

Page 39



Council’s Standards Committee, including not more than one member 
of the authority’s Executive. The appointed Hearings Panel shall 
nominate a Hearings Panel Chair.  The Independent Person shall be 
invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings Panel.  Where a 
complaint refers to a Parish Councillor, a non-voting Parish member of 
the Standards Committee may also attend any Hearing Panel.

(b) The Committee will hear appeals from officers who do not wish to 
appear as witnesses before a select committee (see Protocol for 
Officers in Part 4 of the Constitution); monitor complaints received by 
the Ombudsman; monitor the member development programme and 
evaluate its effectiveness.

Page 40


	Agenda
	3a Special Meeting - 15 October 2019
	3b Ordinary Meeting - 15 October 2019
	6 To approve the recommendations from the Audit and Regulatory Committee
	6a Treasury Management - Mid Year Update Report
	Appendix A

	6b Appointment of Mayor 2020/21
	7 To approve the recommendations from the Standards Committee
	7a Standards Committee Annual Report
	Appendix A


